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Tuesday, May 28, 2002 rewrite 6/4/02 11:26 AM 6/4%/02 5:57 PM
From the desk of Gloria Farrar, 539-8011, fax 537-3776
Proposed text for the Bethany Beach Historical Marker:

Bethany Beach Loop Canal

Completed July 8, 1910, The Loop Canal marked the end of a
long journey for vacationers traveling to Bethany Beach in the town’s
early days.

Arriving in Rehoboth by railroad, travelers would continue their
voyage by boat crossing Rehoboth Bay, Indian River Bay, and the U.S.
Government (Assawoman) Canal. Originally the final leg of the arduous
Journey was completed in a two-horse drawn bus through deep sand to
the town,

A promised railway never materialized. Between 1907-1910 the
Bethany Beach Improvement Company, land developers of the day, and
Mr. Addy, who headed up this project, dredged the 1% mile-long
Bethany Canal. This project enabled the visitors to board only one boat
for the last phase of the trip.

Since the shallow-draft motorboat the “Allie May, could not back
up, a loop was formed here at the First Street dock to allow the boat to
turn around for the return trip.

Characters with spaces: 911






. Pennsylvania Avenue opposite the foot of First'

from Washington, D.C. or Pittsburgh, Pa. took 3
fortitude, grit and patience in the face of up to :3K&
two days of discomiort and even danger. The old

Bethany Beach Canal, whose loop end (3) is off .

Street, is a reminder of the days when the * i°d

cottagers’ journey t« e beach was mostly by rail A
and waterway. i
Once upon a time the canal’s loop was the end
of the long journey for new arrivais (3A) and for * - §
many years the site ¢f the old Addy boat bouse -
(3B) where people could rent rowboats.

Today the “Loop Canal’ ig a pleasant place to
crab and catch minnows from the shore or from a
boat rowed under the dual highway — but duck
your head there! - to the edge of the Salt Pond. -
But before the Bethany Beach Canal ~ in the .. -
first few summers for the Addys and the Errefts ~-
and the other cottager First Families of the -
reorganized Improvement Company -- the last |
part of the long journey was even mere laborious. .
Then most came through Rehoboth, though later - |
as highways were developed, some visitors came , .-
by rail through Frankford or Dagsboro. S
Let Miss Marjorie Errett, earliest sumumer .-
cottager shll living in the area, tell about her first . - &
trips to the Beach from a Pittsburgh suburb.
“We came down right after school closed In VLM
June. Mother would not travel with six children /3
on a sleeper, so we took the day trip to Baltimore. . I
Without a horse and buggy, we had to walk to our 5.4
little station. We sent a big trunk ahead but .‘_ i

i

everybody had to carry something. It was a hait SRS
bour’s trip by the Pennsylvania Railroad into ;;3 7 3

Pittsburgh where we got off and had to walk -i%
aeross the river to the B & O station, Father got “ 2 o
us a pullman and we loved the all-day trip t0 . fi‘*

S
K ol

hL -

Baltimore. We stayed at a hotel down near the
docks so that early in the morning we could walk
to the landing to get the boat across the
Chesapeake to Love Point.”

On the dock at Baltimore, the Pennsylvania
voyagers were joined by early cottagers from
Washington, such as the families of Miss
Katharine Wilfley, daughter of another Foundiog
Father, the Rev. Earle Wilfley, end Mr. Ed
Steele, grandson of Mr. Philip Steele who came in
1903. Both still summer in Betbany and Mr. -
Steele lives in Selbyville ““off season.”

The Washingtonians would have takern an
early-morning train to Baltimore and then a
horse-drawn hus to the Light Street docks, as Mr,
Steele recalls.

At Love Point after the 3 or 4#hour trip across
the Bay, Miss Wilfley reminisces, ‘‘we would
board a narrow-gauge railroad train for another 3
or 4-hour trip through the Eastern Shore farming
country to Rehoboth, right down the main street
where the park is now, to the station.” The old
station building still stands, just off Rehoboth
Avenue near the beack. The trip from Love Point
on Kent Island to Rehoboth was made over the
tracks of the Queen Anne Railroad.

Miss Errett recalls that the families from
Pittsburgh and Washington waited at the station
for another train bringing people on the main line
from Philadelphia. “After they arrived we would

get on a big horse drawn bus that would take us
back on Rehoboth Avenue to the Lewes-Rehoboth
Canal. In the earliest days, we got on a litfle
wood-burning steamer, the Atlantic, which took us

THE STEAMER 'I.'I_'LRHTIC‘.. ON REHOBOTH BAY.

down the canal, through Rehoboth and Indian
River Bays, up White’s Creek past where the
Topside Restaurant is now, to Pennewell's
Landing (37) — that was where the Assawoman
Canal starts from White's Creek. There a
two-horse bus would be waiting to take us the two
miles through deep sand to our house on First



Street.” Quite & trip, two full days and we dldn't
get there till the end of the secand day.”

Or, as Miss Wilfley puts it; “We had arrived!

After a matter of 12 hours on leaving home in

Washington, we were at Bethany Beach! No

wonder, with trips like that in those days, even as i

late as 1913, when we went to Bethany Beach, we
stayed!” Exhausted on arrivel in the late
afternoon, the families would promptly go to bed,

'Iherewasadiﬁerentslantontheh-ipinthe'.

brochure of the Bethany Beach Improvement ..

Company promoting the sale of stock and lota: -
“Pagsengers from Washinglon pay $3.60 for a
round-trip ticket good ten days, or $5 unlimited
‘There could not be & mare picturesque route or a
shorter one to the ocean.'

These are memories of those who were
children then. And the parents? After long,
smoky and dusty train rides, squall-tossed boat
rides through the shallow inland waterways, and
the wagons lurching through the sand and dust -
or mud - to Bethany, and what with seasick
children, plagues of sand flies and mosquitoes, it
was little wonder that ofteo on arrival the
mothers ~ according to one of them — formed “‘a
solid unit against imperiling their and their
children’s lives another seascn, no matter the
spiritual significance of the summer in our lives.”
But most of them came back again and again.

One of the first accomplishments of the
rejuvenated Bethany Beach Improvement Com-
pany before the 1903 summer was to build the

boardwalk along tbe ocean front with three roofed - .-
pavilions, and from this walk another top the ;- -k
auditorium in the Church Assembly Grounds. Be- . o
fore that time, '‘there was no Boardwalk but &' "SR}
multitude of boa.rdwalks " to quote the reminls- U-§&
cences of another brother of Miss Errett, the late .
The pavilions, dest:myed and - .

Edwin R. Errett.
rebuilt several times in different locations
throughout Bethany's history, have been used

both for family fun and for Town programs such
as band concerts. At least once the central

pavilion was the site of the annual Town election.._

The promised railway never came, but in 1907 | /
the Improvement Company, led by Mr. Addy
dredped the Bethany Beach Canal to the Beach
from the old Assawoman Canal (then called the
U.S. Government Canal).

The new Bethariy Beach Canal permitied
travelers io come all the way to the Beacb in one
boat ride from Rehoboth. A shallow-draft
motorboat, the Allie May, replaced the old
steamer Aflantic for the last leg of the journey.
“Often,”’ Miss Wilfley remembers, “the boat was
so heavily loaded, we youngsters could dip our
hands and feet in the water as we chugged along
acrgss Rehoboth Bay, Indian River Bay and the
c&ﬂa "l

They cbugged up the 1 %-mile-long djtch)'
which stil holds .water though it's hardly
navigable, to the loop at the foot of First Street,
cut 30 the Allie. May could turn around for the
return voyage. 1t was a shert walk for the
cottagers between the boat landing at the end of
the loop and their swmmer homes in the nearby
streets,
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“~ woman Canal to the fagt of First Street in Bethany
Beach, which eliminated the last bus ride. It was looped
because the Allie May — a motarboat designed to

Nowadays, pecple Motor acrass
the Chesapeake Bay Bridge and,
unless they're unfortenate enough
o encounter a weekend rraffic
problem, take the trip prety much
in stride. For those who
prefer air travel, there s frequent
service (o a convenient airport in
Salisbury, Maryland.

In the early 1900s, though.
getring 10 Bethany Beach was not
a day at the beach — it was a day
getting o the beach. from almost
anywhere ourside Delaware.

From Piutsburgh, it was a full
two-day trip.

Far the Erretts, traveling from
the Pittsburgh suburb of Carnegie,
it ook three trains. two boats and
three horse-drawn carriages It
began with a half-hour train ride
into dewntown Pittsburgh to catch
a train o Baltimore where they
spent the night. The next day, they
took a horse-drawn bus 1o the dock area, where a
boat awaited They then traveled by boat down the
Chesapeake Bay 1o Love Point on the Eastern Shore.
Erom there. it was another train ride across the
Peninsula 1o Lewes, Delaware, where the train backed

areund and proceeded to the station in Rehoboth Beach.

After a wait for the passengers arriving by
rrain from Philadelphia, a carriage took rhe Erretts 1o
the Lewes-Rehobath Canal where they ook a wood-
burning steamer (the Atlantic) dowr the Canal to
Pennewell’s Landing in Ocean View. From there it
was still one more horse-drawn bus ride o Bethany
Beach. (This was actually a two-horse bus.)

In 1910, a loop canal was dredged from the Assa-
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etting There Was Not Half the Fun

traverse shallow waters —
couldn't back up

The trip to the share took the
Erretts two full days and a nighe
in Baltimore. tt was described by
the Erretts and others as com-
pletely exhausting. People usually
went right to bed after arrival,
Memories of the trip included
$moky and dusty trains, squatl-
rossed boat rides through narrow
waterways. wagons urching
throuph sand and dust, plagues
of sand Ries and mosquitoes,
and seasick children.

Bur they kept coming back.

Note.

Dr. E D. Power, the Washington
religious leader who was the force
behind the original sectlernen,
described the trip_from Washington
in somewhat different terms.
Writing for @ promotional
brochure, Dr. Powers rhapsodized:

“There could not be a more picturesgue roufe or g
shorter ore to the ccean. By B&O ro Baltimore,
thence by the fine sieamer Princess Anne dcross
the Chesapeake for thirty miles.. .under the wood-
ed shores of the Isle of Kent to lovely Queenstown,
thenee for sixty miles by Queen Anne Railroad. .
to the ancient city of Lewes and the county of
Sussex in Delaware; thence through kaleidoscopic
scenery of lovely waters, smiling shores., fertile

fields, woods, streams, and [ily siarred lakes:
and then the great ccean. with its splendid beach.
its sur/. its varied scenery, its manifold voices,
its majesty and its healing and refreshment.”



When the loop canal was built in 1910,
it was cause for celebration

After the loop canal was built,
passengers traveled on the Allie
May o thelr finul destinarion.
John Addy’s son Will was in
charge of the [vop canal con- .
struction, which was completed /-
on july B. 190, The laberngcie is
visibie behind the flug

On a return rip. the Allie May pulls away from the dock.

Ad



The journey was difficult...but the prospect of
a summer at Bethany Beach made it worthwhile

A crowd of peopie traverse the boardwalk from First Street to the boat landing.

The crowd awails the caily boat.






You are cordially invited to attend the
Closing Ceremonies
of the
Bethany Beach Centermial Year
Thursday, July n, 2002,
4:00 PM
Loop Canal Centermial Park
Pennsylvania and First Street

Reception and Light Refreshments
immediately following in
Town Hall
Invitation only

In case of inclement weather the
ceremonies will be held in Town Hall

$39-2740

Pern. Ave. will be closed 1o wehicle traffic betvween
First 5¢t. & Second St
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BETHANY BEACH

as little as $10 down with payments of only §1 per week. In addition to the
residential lots, the Christian Church reserved a large area near the center
of town to serve as the “Assembly Grounds,” where they erected a distinctive
auditorium, known as the “Tabernacle” or “the Auditorium.”

The octagon-shaped wooden structure was designed with sides that could
be opened to allow the sea breeze to cool the audience. Looming over an
open field several blocks from the beach, the brown-shingled Tabernacle
would become a symbol of Bethany for more than half a century. On
Sundays, the building was used for church services; during the rest of the
week, the Auditorium hosted Chautauqua lectures, political meetings,
musical presentations and other events. In 1905, Power commented on the
programs held in the Tabernacle that year:

E. Cramblet, of Bethany, and his illustrated lectures on the Holy Land.
The service rendered by President Cramblet was of a high order and gave
eminent satisfaction. .. Mys. Princess Long come on fuly 21-26 with her
splendid concerts and solos. Her evenings were largely attended and she
recewed the unstinted praise which everywhere and always comes to this
sweet singer in Israel. Wallace Tharp was with us the second week and
that sermon “The Withered Hand” and lecture on “Babylon™ will long

Princess Long’s concerts in the Auditorium were well received by the people of Bethany.
Courtesy of the Town of Bethany Beach.

Bethany Blossoms at the Beach

linger in the memories of our visitors. The Doctor is not only a skillful
Jisher of men, but knows how to throw a line in the briny deep and play an
ocean lrout, or write a sonnet with equal dexterity and beauty.

Some of the lectures held in the Tabernacle were illustrated with lantern
slides. Power noted, “A.E. Zeigler, of Wheeling, made his debut at the
beach as a stereropticon entertainer, and his pictures and descriptions were
full of interest.”

In addition to these lectures, slide shows and other entertainment, the
Auditorium was used to show some of the first motion pictures at the beach.
Movies as a form of mass entertainment were in their infancy, and most
films were only about ten minutes long. Power, however, reported, “Nothing
takes quite so well with our rural patronage and with the youngsters as the

moving pictures.”

THE LoNG, LONG ROAD TO BETHANY BEACH

Bethany Beach may have opened with a bang, but the resort was perched
on an 1solated stretch of the Delaware coast. The dirt road that followed the

After a long journey to Bethany, some vacationers enjoined riding on the beach. Courtesy of
the lown of Bethany Beach.



BeTHANY BEACH

old Native American trails to the beach was bone-jarringly bumpy in dry
weather and a muddy quagmire in the rain. Getting to Bethany was difficult
for residents of Dagsboro, Frankfort and other southern Delaware towns;
for vacationers who lived in more distant cities, reaching the new resort to
enjoy the surf, sea breezes and speeches at the Tabernacle required a major
expedition. Not only did vacationers come from Washington, Baltimore
and Philadelphia, but Bethany also attracted many visitors from Pittsburgh,
Johnstown and other midwestern cities.

In the early twentieth century, when many vacationers at Bethany came
from the Pittsburgh area, they began their journey to the beach by packing
an assortment of trunks and suitcases with enough clothes, hats and shoes
for an extended visit. In addition to the necessities, there were also books,
toys and an occasional pet. In the early days of the resort, the proportion
of people who stayed for the season was very high. After the luggage was
packed, many families boarded a horse and carriage for a ride to the train
station. At the beginning of the twentieth century, many cities were served
by electric streetcars, and the Bethany-bound vacationers may have hoisted
their luggage onto a streetcar bound to a railroad station. Others began their
journey by packing their luggage aboard a horse-drawn carriage to ride to
the railroad station, where they boarded a train for the first leg of their trek.

The train chugged eastward out of the mountains to Baltimore, where the
travelers stayed overnight. In the morning, the vacationers from Pennsylvania
joined others from Washington and Baltimore in Baltimore’s Inner Harbor,
where they boarded a steamer. As they sailed down the Patapsco River and
the steamboat reached the Chesapeake Bay, it turned south, crossed the bay
and landed at Love Point on the northern tip of Kent Island.

After the two-and-a-half-hour boat ride, all of the luggage, suitcases and
other paraphernalia needed for a stay at the beach was unloaded from
the steamer and hoisted aboard a train for the trip across the Delmarva
Peninsula. Aboard the train, passengers rode in spacious cars that featured
comfortable upholstered seats. Open windows allowed for a constant flow
of fresh air, which was usually peppered with cinders and ashes that spewed
from the engine’s smokestack. The passenger cars had no air conditioning,
and train passengers had to ride with the windows opened, allowing the
smoky debris to infiltrate the cars. At the end of the train ride, vacationers
took a few minutes to beat the soot and ashes from their clothes.

The train ride across the Delmarva Peninsula ended at Rehoboth Beach,
where the vacationers again loaded their trunks, suitcases and other bags onto
a horse-drawn bus that took them to a landing on the Lewes and Rehoboth

Bethany Blossoms at the Beach

Pennewell’s Landing at Ocean View was one stop on the way to Bethany. Courtesy of the Town
of Bethany Beach.

The bus carried vacationers to Bethany beach. Courtesy of the Town of Bethany Beach.

Canal. There they boarded a small boat for the trip southward across

Rehoboth and Indian River Bays to Pennewell’s Landing in Ocean View.
After the boat reached Ocean View, the luggage and vacationers were

again transferred to another horse-drawn bus for the ride into Bethany



BETHANY BEACH

Visitors to Bethany on their way to meet the boat at the Loop Canal. Courtesy of the Town of
Bethany Beach.

Beach. By 1910, the “Loop Canal” was dug so that boats could steam
directly into the center of the resort. From the landing at the foot of First
Street at Pennsylvania Avenue, vacationers made the last, short leg of their
trip across the sandy streets to their accommodations for the summer.

Dr. Power did not exaggerate when he wrote of these determined
visitors: “Out of the dust and grime they come, and lead themselves to
the waves for a thorough washing, and off comes the soot and soil from
the bodies and down come the cobwebs from the brains and we send them
back born again.”

At that time, Rehoboth, Delaware, Ocean City, Maryland and Atlantic
City, New Jersey, had excellent rail connections with the big cities, and trains
carried thousands of vacationers to the beach every summer. Bethany Beach
had no rail connection, and there was little prospect that it would ever have
one. About 1904, the Bethany Herald proudly published a little ditty:

Ocean City has one railroad,
Rehoboth two can claim;
Bethany Beach has none at all,
But we get there just the same.

Bethany Blossoms at the Beach

BETHANY BUILDS

The trip to Bethany Beach may have been cumbersome, but vacationers
continued to make their way to the resort. Some of these visitors liked the
area so much that they decided to call Bethany their home. In 1910, the
U.S. census put the town’s population at fifty-six permanent residents, many

In the early years, there were wide tracts of sand between the houses. Courtesy of the Town of
Bethany Beach.

William Errett. enioving the porch of his home. Courtesy aof the Tavew af Pothowe D .1



BeTHANY BEACH

One of the most popular boats was the Allie May, a small steamboat th t could navigate
some of the shallows found in the coastal bays. Courtesy of the Town of Bethany Beach.

As picturesque as the small steamers that carried vacationers down the
Loop Canal into town were, their capacity was limited, and they were being
challenged by the growing popularity of cars. Although horseless carriages
had been around for over a decade and were constantly being improved,
driving to Bethany meant negotiating miles of deeply rutted, unpaved roads.
To rectify the sorry state of Delaware roads, wealthy Delaware businessman
T. Colman du Pont, proposed building a modern, hard-surfaced highway
from Selbyville to Wilmington and presented it to the state as his gift. When
the state law authorizing the acceptance of this generous offer was challenged
in court, it appeared that Delaware roads might remain in their medieval
condition. In 1913, however, the Bethany Beach Booster was able to report:

The Supreme Court of Delaware has decided that the DuPont Boulevard
law s constitutional. Go ahead, Boulevard! Everything leads toward
Bethany Beach, the leading Christian seaside resort in the country.

Bethany Blossoms at the Beach

Early Ocean View motorists ready for a Sunday drive. Courtesy of the Ocean View
Historical Society.

The news of this decision was happily received at the Breakers, where
former state senator Drexler and his family usually had a house full of people.
Drexler delighted in taking his guests boating and fishing, but his passion was
driving visitors around the sandy coastal roads in his car. In August 1913, a
meeting was convened in Rehoboth Beach to organize the Sussex County
Automobile Association, and Drexler was eager to attend; however, the wild
dunes between Rehoboth and Bethany were too formidable for any car to
navigate. Drexler was forced to attend the car conference by boat.

In some Delaware communities, cars were becoming common. By 1910,
there were so many cars in Lewes that the town council imposed a speed
limit of eight miles per hour for all cars operating on the town’s streets. In
addition, the town council mandated that all cars had to be equipped with a
light for night driving and that drivers were required to blow their horns at
every intersection.

Although the leaders of Lewes had to contend with the growing number
of automobiles on the town’s streets, Bethany Beach had no such problem.
As Senator Drexler (who was from Pittsburgh) was well aware, it took an
intrepid traveler to reach Bethany. Construction on the Du Pont Highway
had barely begun in 1913 when Drexler and other automobile owners
met in Rehoboth. Drexler’s inability to travel from Bethany to Rehoboth
by car highlighted the need for a road that linked the two seaside resorts,



BeTHANY BEACH

and whatever embarrassment his arrival by boat may have generated was
dispelled by the growing popularity of cars. One day, Drexler believed, there
would be a road across the dunes linking Bethany and Rehoboth.

Although highway construction in Delaware was slowed by the American
entry into World War I, by the 1920s cars had become commonplace on
Delaware roads; however, there was still no link between the seaside resorts.
In the 1920s, the completion of the Du Pont Highway allowed more
vacationers to drive to the beach, and Drexler continued to push for the
construction of a hard-surfaced road along the coast. Twenty years later,
that dream became a reality, and the Delaware Coast News reported:

It was Senator Drexler’s own dream, and regardless of what personal
interest he may have had in the project, it was a_far-sighted glimpse which
looked into many tomorrows when suitable ocean sites will be at a premum.
About thirteen mules of Senator Drexler’s dream has come true.

The Bethany Beach Booster had recognized his tenacity in 1913:

Former Senator Drexler; the Bull Moose leader of Delaware, is still at the
beach. The Bosses have not driven him away yet. The young Napoleon
Jrom Muddy Neck at the next election should be sent back to Dover by all
manner of means. He, while there before, showed the people that no boss,
corporation, or railroad could control his action when the best interests
of the people were at stake. Independence in our representative vs what
is wanted and needed. Drexler has lately proven a godsend to Bethany

Beach people.

It would take many years, but as the roads improved, visitors to Bethany
Beach would not have to contend with trains, boats and carriages to reach
the resort. The shift in transportation would mean that Bethany would one
day become a thriving resort for hundreds of thousands of vacationers.

Although that transformation would be slow in coming, the Booster
announced another pending change in 1913 that would take a steady hand

from the community:

Capt. and Mrs. Vickers are still at the Life-Saving Station. Their house,
lately buwilt in Georgetown, Del., has been furnished and is ready for
occupancy when the Captain concludes to leave the Government service.

Bethany Blossoms at the Beach

Keeper Vickers belonged to a generation of lifesavers w
an'd'weather to assist those on ships in distress. By the © braved wind
dr1v1r?g on the sands of Bethany Beach, Guglielmo Marcorr??hDre.Xler was
a rudimentary radio system that was the forerunner of a var'l ¢ invented
that would alter life in the coastal communities, Marconi’;ety o changes
syste.m was capable of transmitting only the dots and dashes ofe izly reless
and it seemed best suited to improve shipboard communicatio BOYSe code.
de.cade of the twentieth century, many large ships had been en' - the ﬁ.rst
w1rele.ss telegraph equipment, and a series of wireless statioqmpped i
established along the Atlantic coast—including one at Bethan I}; 1o been

The wireless station in the resort was part of a radio naviyat'eaCh'
that enabled captains to ascertain their positions as they magd IO}rll o
along the coast. When a captain nearing the entrance to Def N
would broadcast his call sign, it was picked up by the stations ;ftw}?rehBay
Cape Henlopen and Cape May. At each station, the wireless crew ft P
compass heading of the incoming signal. The three headings wereo eld e
to 'the Cape Henlopen station, where the crew used a map and ece ot
string to plot the direction of each signal. The three strings interse f 1celces "
vessel’s lo?ation, which could be relayed to the captain of the shi edae

The wreless station at Bethany remained part of the radti)). com
system for a number of years. During that time, the reception of “d tpcél1 ,
dot, d.ash. dash dash, dot dot dot” of an SOS caused the wireless o e?atoot
to spring n?to. action to save a ship in distress. Eventually, the developlrjnent (:;
more sophisticated equipment made the wireless station obsolete, and it w:
aban.doned. As the demands of the modern world grew, the old i,ife-Saviljl :
Service became part of the Coast Guard, and many SL;rfmen and ke ;
such as Washington Vickers, retired to a more leisurely life. o
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